MINUTES OF THE WAVERLEY TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEETING HELD BY VIDEO CONFERENCE ON THURSDAY, 27 JANUARY 2022



Voting Members Present:

Snr Cst A Birchansky NSW Police – Eastern Suburbs Police Area Command – Traffic Services

Mr J Phillips-Yelland Representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee

Mr R Sritharan Transport for NSW – Network and Safety Officer

Ms J Zin Representing Gabrielle Upton, MP, Member for Vaucluse

Also Present:

Mr V Lee Transport for NSW – Network and Safety Services Manager

Mr J Warren-Smith Office of Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee

Mr D Joannides Waverley Council – Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services
Mr C Hutcheson Waverley Council – Service Manager, Traffic and Transport

Mr C Yabuka Waverley Council – Manager, Strategic Transport

Mr N Zervos Waverley Council – Manager, Asset Systems and Planning

Mr P Cai Waverley Council – Traffic Engineer

Ms B Wang Waverley Council – Professional Engineer, Traffic and Development

Cr L Fabiano Waverley Council Cr T Kay Waverley Council

At the commencement of proceedings at 10.01 am, those present were as listed above, with the exception of Mr J Phillips-Yelland who arrived at 10.24 am.

In the absence of Council's voting representative, who will be appointed at the Council meeting on 15 February 2022, Mr D Joannides (Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services) chaired the meeting, in accordance with the Traffic Committee Charter.

Apologies

Apologies were received and accepted from Cr P Masselos (Mayor) and Mr P Pearce (representing Marjorie O'Neill, MP, Member for Coogee).

Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

The Chair called for declarations of interest and the following was received:

1. Cr T Kay declared a pecuniary interest in item TC/V.08/22.01 – 107 Ramsgate Avenue, North Bondi – Construction Zone and informed the meeting that his mother-in-law owns property at 101 Ramsgate Avenue, and that he will leave the meeting for the consideration and vote on this item.

Adoption of Previous Minutes by Council - 28 October 2021

The recommendations contained in Part 1 – Matters Proposing that Council Exercise its Delegated Functions – of the minutes of the Waverley Traffic Committee meeting held on 28 October 2021 were adopted by Council at its meeting on 23 November 2021 with the following change:

1. TC/V.01/21.10 – Blake Street, Dover Heights – Traffic Calming.

Council adopted the recommendation of the Traffic Committee subject to it being amended to read as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 10 metre 'BB' line at the intersection of Blake Street and Old South Head Road, as shown in Figure 3 of the report.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to modify the designs should on-site circumstances warrant changes.

ITEMS BY EXCEPTION

The following items on the agenda were dealt with together and the Council Officer's Proposal for each item was unanimously supported by the Committee:

TC/C.05/22.01	34 Darling Street, Bronte – 'P Disability Only' Zone in Turner Street.
TC/C.06/22.01	6 Gordon Place, Bronte – Construction Zone.
TC/C.07/22.01	106 Hewlett Street, Bronte – Construction Zone.
TC/V.01/22.01	Murriverie Road, North Bondi – Bus Zone Modification.
TC/V.02/22.01	1/60 Roscoe Street, Bondi Beach – 'P Disability Only' Zone.
TC/V.04/22.01	2/335 Military Road, Vaucluse – 'P Disability Only' Zone.
TC/V.05/22.01	121 Old South Head Road, Bondi Junction – Construction Zone in Paul Street.
TC/V.06/22.01	21-25 Ramsgate Avenue, Bondi Beach – Construction Zone.
TC/V.07/22.01	122 Hastings Parade, North Bondi – Construction Zone.
TC/V.09/22.01	9 Military Road, Dover Heights – Construction Zone.

PART 1 – MATTERS PROPOSING THAT COUNCIL EXERCISE ITS DELEGATED FUNCTIONS

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda propose that Council either does or does not exercise the traffic related functions delegated to it by TfNSW. The recommendations made by the Committee under this part of the agenda will be submitted to Council for adoption.

TC/C STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE

TC/C.01/22.01 Waverley Bus Depot - Access Improvements (A20/0114)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Supports the closure of the Waverley Bus Depot access to Oxford Street and the signalisation of the York Road/Waverley Bus Depot intersection.
- 2. Supports 'No Stopping' restrictions on York Road across the Bus Depot intersection and 20 metres on either side in accordance with Transport for NSW (TfNSW) Technical Direction 2002/12c (Stopping and Parking Restrictions at Intersections and Crossings).
- 3. Extends the 20 metre 'No Stopping' restrictions on the western side of York Road north of the intersection by 30 metres on a six-month trial basis.
- 4. Requests TfNSW to fund the renewal of the road surface and the installation of compliant street lighting on multi-function poles between the new signals and Oxford Street.
- 5. Requests TfNSW to investigate options to reduce the length of the 20 metre 'No Stopping' restrictions on the approaches/departures to the York Road/Waverly Bus Depot intersection.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (MAJORITY SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to the addition of new clauses 6–9 such that the recommendation now reads as follows:

That Council:

- 1. Supports the closure of the Waverley Bus Depot access to Oxford Street and the signalisation of the York Road/Waverley Bus Depot intersection.
- 2. Supports 'No Stopping' restrictions on York Road across the Bus Depot intersection and 20 metres on either side in accordance with Transport for NSW (TfNSW) Technical Direction 2002/12c (Stopping and Parking Restrictions at Intersections and Crossings).
- 3. Extends the 20 metre 'No Stopping' restrictions on the western side of York Road north of the intersection by 30 metres on a six-month trial basis.
- 4. Requests TfNSW to fund the renewal of the road surface and the installation of compliant street lighting on multi-function poles between the new signals and Oxford Street.
- 5. Requests TfNSW to investigate options to reduce the length of the 20 metre 'No Stopping' restrictions on the approaches/departures to the York Road/Waverly Bus Depot intersection.

- 6. Investigates the existing parking restrictions on both sides of York Road to the north of the York Road bus depot bus access for conversion to unrestricted parking outside peak times, with a report to the Traffic Committee six months after the project's implementation.
- 7. Requests TfNSW to provide more detailed analysis of the effects on the Oxford Street/York Road and Syd Einfeld Drive/Ocean Street intersections.
- 8. Requests TfNSW to consult NSW Police and Woollahra Council.
- 9. Requests TfNSW to consult Mill Hill Bondi Junction Precinct, Queens Park Precinct, Moriah College and local residents prior to commencing the project.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

The representative of the Member for Coogee voted against the recommendation and requested that it be recorded in the minutes that the Member for Coogee requires Transport for NSW to undertake further community consultation.

TC/C.02/22.01 O'Dowd Street, Waverley - Vehicle Length Restriction (SF22/91)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council seeks authorisation from Transport for NSW to install the following signs at the entrance to O'Dowd Street from Victoria Street, Waverley:

- 1. 'No Trucks or Buses (symbolic) Vehicles over 7.5 m.'
- 2. 'Garbage Trucks Excepted.'

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to being amended to read as follows:

That Council submits a Traffic Management Plan for approval by Transport for NSW for installation of the following signs at the entrance to O'Dowd Street from Victoria Street, Waverley:

- 'No Trucks or Buses (symbolic) Vehicles over 7.5 m.'
- 2. 'Garbage Trucks Excepted.'

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

TC/C.03/22.01 Scott Street and Marroo Street Intersection, Bronte - 'No Stopping' Zone (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 9 metre 'No Stopping' zone on the southern and northern side of Scott Street, Bronte, at the intersection of Marroo Street.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/C.04/22.01 Bronte Bowling Club, 16 Wallace Street, Waverley - Loading Zone (A14/0145)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 12 metre 'Loading Zone, 12 pm–4 pm, Tuesday to Friday' on the eastern side of Wallace Street, Waverley, in front of Bronte Bowling Club, as shown in Figure 1 of the report.
- 2. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of the loading zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Coogee, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/C.05/22.01 34 Darling Street, Bronte - 'P Disability Only' Zone in Turner Street (A20/0534)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 6 metre 'P Disability Only' parking zone in Turner Street, Bronte, between the driveways at the rear of 32 and 34 Darling Street.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative and representative of the Member for Coogee were not present for the vote on this item.

TC/C.06/22.01 6 Gordon Place, Bronte - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 11.5 metre 'No Parking 9 am–2.30 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 6 Gordon Place, Bronte.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative and representative of the Member for Coogee were not present for the vote on this item.

TC/C.07/22.01 106 Hewlett Street, Bronte - Construction Zone (SF22/199)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 102 Hewlett Street, Bronte.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative and representative of the Member for Coogee were not present for the

vote on this item.

TC/V STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE

TC/V.01/22.01 Murriverie Road, North Bondi - Bus Zone Modification (A20/0076)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council reduces the length of the bus zone outside 38, 40 and 42 Murriverie Road, North Bondi, from 30 metres to 20 metres.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.02/22.01 1/60 Roscoe Street, Bondi Beach - 'P Disability Only' Zone (SF21/5406)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 5.4 metre 'P Disability Only' parking zone in front of 60 Roscoe Street, Bondi Beach.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.03/22.01 8/133 Hastings Parade, North Bondi - 'P Disability Only' Zone (SF21/5408)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council lengthens the 'P Disability Only' parking zone in front of 129 Hastings Parade, North Bondi, towards the south-east by 5.2 metres from 6.8 metres to 12 metres to accommodate 2 cars.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted subject to being amended to read as follows:

That Council lengthens the 'P Disability Only' parking zone in front of 129 Hastings Parade, North Bondi, towards the south-east by 5.2 metres from 6.8 metres to 12 metres to accommodate 2 cars, and marks the

two bays.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.04/22.01 2/335 Military Road, Vaucluse - 'P Disability Only' Zone (SF22/65)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council installs a 5.4 m 'P Disability Only' parking zone in front of 337 Military Road, Vaucluse, adjacent to the west end of the existing 'No Stopping' zone in Military Road.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.05/22.01 121 Old South Head Road, Bondi Junction - Construction Zone in Paul Street (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 10 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in Paul Street adjacent to 121 Old South Head Road, Bondi Junction.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

TC/V.06/22.01 21-25 Ramsgate Avenue, Bondi Beach - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 16.5 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone on the northern side of 21–25 Ramsgate Avenue, Bondi Beach.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.07/22.01 122 Hastings Parade, North Bondi - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 13.3 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 122 Hastings Parade, North Bondi.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

TC/V.08/22.01 107 Ramsgate Avenue, North Bondi - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

Cr T Kay declared a pecuniary interest in this item and informed the meeting that his mother-in-law owns property at 101 Ramsgate Avenue. Cr T Kay was not present at, or in sight of, the meeting for the consideration and vote on this item.

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 16 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone in front of 101 Ramsgate Avenue, North Bondi.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

The Waverley Council representative was not present for the vote on this item.

TC/V.09/22.01 9 Military Road, Dover Heights - Construction Zone (A03/2514-04)

COUNCIL OFFICER'S PROPOSAL:

That Council:

- 1. Installs a 9 metre 'No Parking 7 am–5 pm Mon–Fri, 8 am–3 pm Sat, Council Authorised Vehicles Excepted' construction zone along the western side of 9 Military Road, Dover Heights.
- 2. Requires the applicant to notify residents in the vicinity of the construction zone prior to it being installed.
- 3. Delegates authority to the Executive Manager, Infrastructure Services, to adjust the length and duration of, or remove, the construction zone, as necessary.

WTC RECOMMENDATION (UNANIMOUS SUPPORT):

That the Council Officer's Proposal be adopted.

Voting members present for this item: Representative of the Member for Vaucluse, NSW Police representative and TfNSW representative.

TC/CV ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAUCLUSE

Nil.

PART 2 – TRAFFIC ENGINEERING ADVICE

NOTE: The matters listed under this part of the agenda seek the advice of the WTC only and do not propose that Council exercise its delegated functions at this point in time (though they may or may not require it in the future).

TC/TEAC	STATE ELECTORATE OF COOGEE	
Nil.		
TC/TEAV	STATE ELECTORATE OF VAUCLUSE	
Nil.		
TC/TEACV	ELECTORATES OF COOGEE AND VAU	<u>CLUSE</u>
Nil.		
IVII.		
THE MEETING CLOSED AT 11.08 AM.		
		SIGNED AND CONFIRMED MAYOR
		15 FEBRUARY 2022